
REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

June 2, 2025 

PAGE48 

The Jasper County Commissioners met this date at 8:30 A.M. C.S.T at 910 S Sparling Ave., 
Rensselaer, Indiana with the following members present: Rein Bontreger, Craig Standish and Ryan 
Hilton. Also present were Auditor: Diana Boersma, Deputy Auditor: Cynthia Slaughter, and Eric 
Beaver, the Attorney that represents the Commissioners. Those present stood and recited the 
Pledge of Allegiance led by Mr. Bontreger. There was a brief moment of silence following the 
Pledge. 

The Commissioners meeting had audio issues and a recording is not available for the entirety of 
the meeting. 

MINUTES: Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve the minutes from May 5, 2025 as presented, Mr. 
Standish seconded and the motion carried. 

CLAIMS: Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve the claims, as presented, Mr. Standish seconded 
and the motion carried. 

PAYROLL CLAIMS: Mr. Standish made a motion to approve the payroll claims with checks 
dated May 15, 2025 and May 30, 2025, Mr. Hilton seconded and the motion carried. 

CORONER: Mr. Standish provided updates on the Forensic Center. Mr. Standish reported 
estimated costs between $1,667,500 and $2,466,200 with average cost of$2,062,050. Mr. Standish 
reported an estimate from Hamstra Builders has come in at $1,500,000 and an estimate from Titan 
has come in at $2,500,000 to $2,700,000. He also proved an estimate from Kevin Moore Electric 
for needed electrical updates of $50,000. 

HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT ED CAINE: Mr. Caine made a new hire request to replace an 
employee that is going to retire. Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve a new hire request, Mr. 
Standish seconded, and the motion carried. 

JACK HABERLIN: Mr. Haberlin presented Right-of-Way permits. Mr. Haberlin stated there were 
4 permits for Newton County REMC and 6 permits for Ervin Cable Construction. Mr. Standish 
made a motion to approve all right of way permits, Mr. Hilton seconded, and the motion carried. 

HUMAN RESOURCES: Additions/Amendments to the Employee Handbook were presented. 
Additions/amendments effective immediately were presented for the following sections; wage 
policy, timesheets, paydays, short term disability, flex time, sick leave-termination/retirement 
change, sick bank changes, travel time, workman's comp, and employment retirement notice and 
terminations notice. Additions/amendments effective January 1, 2026 were presented for the 
following sections; benefits wait time change and addition to policy, sick leave, vacation benefits, 
personal days. Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve additions/amendments to the Employee 
Handbook as presented. Mr. Standish seconded, and the motion carried. 

ANIMi\.L_CQNTROL: Animal control was not present. 

RNER VALLEY SOCCER ASSOCIATION: Mr. Hilton reported that there is no written contract 
between River Valley Soccer Association and the county to use the land by the Sheriffs annex in 
Demotte. He stated prior usage was granted verbally. Mr. Hilton stated a written contract is needed. 
Kelly Murray with the River Valley Soccer Association was present. Ms. Murray stated the land 
at the Sheriffs annex is used for their travel teams' practices and games. She stated there are two 
to four games each Sunday. Ms. Murray stated they are insured through SAY Soccer. She stated 
they use the fields starting in the spring through the first week of June and then again August 
through October. She stated they do mow the fields and the right of way. Ms. Murray stated they 
use the shed on the property with the garage door as storage and for their referees. She stated they 
also put in another shed that they use as a concession stand. 

Mr. Beaver stated they will need to execute a license for River Valley Soccer Association to use 
the land. Mr. Bontreger stated they should have this done before the new season starts in August 
and then renew it in January every year. 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

June 2, 2025 

PAGE49 

RECESS: A five-minute recess was taken to address audio issues that had been occurring since 
the start of the meeting. 

RECONVENED: Jasper County Commissioners meeting reconvened 9:29 a.m. EST. 

BF AND S: Jake Dammerall from BF and S stated there are three bridges that need rehabilitation. 
He stated those bridges are; bridge 4 carrying Melville Street over Iroquois River, bridge 68 
carrying County Road 1000 West over Iroquois River, and bridge 261 carrying County Road 400 
West over Hodge Ditch. He stated they can do rehab on all three bridges instead of replacement 
and this would cost the county less money because it would just be redoing the bridge decks. He 
stated they would put all three bridges into the bidding. Mr. Dammerall stated he would guess it 
would cost around $500,000 each to redo the bridges. Mr. Bontreger stated total amount is 
$333,200. Mr. Standish made a motion to approve BF and S Services concerning the three bridges, 
as presented. Mr. Hilton seconded, and the motion carried. 

LANA ZIMMER-JASPER COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT: Lana 
Zimmer stated the commissioners previously approved the reestablishment of the weed board. She 
stated according to Indiana Code there are four voting members, one is a trustee from a township 
in the county, one is a representative from the Soil and Water Conservation District, one person 
from agriculture, and one from the highway department. She stated she would like to recommend 
the SWCD District Supervisor Jim Martin who comes from the north end of the county, Scott 
Baylor as the agricultural representative and he is a farmer in the Remington area She stated they 
have a township trustee in mind but they have not been able to communicate with that person yet 
and that person would come from mid county. She stated Ed Cain would be the person from the 
county highway department unless he chooses to have the commissioners appoint someone else. 
She stated Summer Brown Brinkman from Purdue Extension has agreed to serve an advisory role. 
She stated each of the board members would have a four-year term and they are nonpaid positions, 
however, traveling expenses would be provided by the county. She stated she would contact them 
with their choice in trustee after they get confirmation. Mr. Beaver stated everything that Lana said 
is correct and there is a statute that says the board is established by the Board of Commissioners 
by way of an ordinance, so the Commissioners can pass an ordinance to create the board and then 
also do the appointments. Mr. Bontreger stated there was historically a board and it just kind of 
ended. He asked, does that require establishing the board as brand new or is it picking up where it 
used to be. Mr. Beaver stated he did look at the most recent auditor appointment sheet that they 
keep for the Commissioners and there is nobody mentioned for any board positions, and there is 
also another sheet that lists all the county offices and officers and there is no weed board on there 
so there is nobody serving a four-year term. He stated he reviewed county code because that is 
where the boards that are established by an ordinance would be and there is just no record of it. 
Mr. Beaver stated he will have an ordinance ready for the July meeting. Mr. Bontreger stated they 
would put that on the July agenda to have the ordinance to reestablish the weed board keeping in 
mind the recommendations from soil and water conservation district to populate the board. 

Ms. Zimmer stated she has had a recent resignation of one of their staff members, the District 
Coordinator and Treasurer from the Winamac area has taken a job in that area. Ms. Zimmer stated 
she would like permission to advertise for that position. She stated that position serves in an 
administrative role, does their grant administration, keeps their books, does their accounting work, 
and payroll. Mr. Standish made a motion to support the request from soil and water to fill the open 
position. Mr. Hilton seconded, and the motion carried. 

KANKAKEE TOWNSHIP TRUSTEE BONNIE VEDEN AND LOUIE KETCHEM: Mr. 
Ketchum stated he handed out tighter numbers that came from their professional services. He 
stated the cost was $387,320 and that he had added some additional costs at the bottom, and then 
subtracted some costs for things they can do themselves, bringing the total cost to $388,400. Mr. 
Ketchum stated a big thing is the septic system. He stated there are two ways they can get it done. 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

June 2, 2025 

PAGE SO 

KANKAKEE TOWNSHIP TRUSTEE BONNIE VEDEN AND LOUIE KETCHEM CONT'D: 
He stated the State has a formula on how they size the septic and they go by parking spaces and it 
is so many gallons per person per parking space. He stated option two, the State allows them to 
install a septic tank which would be pumped and measured monthly to get an accurate account of 
how much waste they will have and then size it to that. Mr. Ketchum stated he spoke with 
Rensselaer Septic and they recommended a 3,000-gallon tank to pump monthly. He stated this was 
figured by estimating they would have 40 people per day, a toilet is 1.6 gallons a flush at 64 gallons 
a day, times 30 days would be 1,920 gallons a month so the 3,000 gallons would give them a 
cushion. He stated it would also have an alarm on it in case it did get high so they would not have 
overflow. He stated the cost is $5,500 for a 3,000-gallon tank and $400 per month to pump it and 
they would only need around 9 months of pumping because it would be closed in the winter. Mr. 
Ketchum stated they had originally asked for $200,000 from the Commissioners. Mr. Bontreger 
asked, when would you be looking for the appropriation. Mr. Ketchum stated they would put it out 
for bid first and then once it comes to construction, he is assuming as they send the bills to them 
they would then go to Diane with it, say the bill was for $10,000 they would tell Diana the county 
portion is $5,000 and their portion is $5,000 and do that until they hit the number the 
Commissioners give them, and then the rest of the cost is on their dimes. He stated they would not 
want the money up front they would send them the bills as they get them. Ms. Boersma stated a 
lot companies want half the money upfront before they even start. Mr. Ketchum stated the State 
frowns on that. Mr. Haberlin stated they want it but we won't do it. Mr. Ketchum stated as they 
get tighter they can start looking to see if there are other things they can do inhouse. Mr. Standish 
stated he thinks some of the numbers seem high and using information Mr. Ketchum has provided 
he comes up with cost of $266,400. He stated this is the number he would be looking at to work 
off of. Mr. Bontreger stated are you thinking half that, $150,000. Mr. Standish stated his numbers 
are not correct because he forgot to add in REMC, meter base disconnect, and professional services 
which would be another $40,080. Mr. Hilton stated that would make it hit the $300,000 mark. Mr. 
Standish stated that would put them roughly at $306,400. Mr. Ketchum stated it will not be until 
next year when they find out what the septic is going to cost to get their final cost. Mr. Standish 
stated he did get an answer from KIRPC and will forward the email to Mr. Ketchum. Mr. Standish 
stated if they can prove the restroom building meets storm shelter standards there is potentially 
grant money there. Mr. Standish stated half of the cost comes to $153,200. Mr. Hilton asked ifhe 
would be comfortable rounding to $155,000. Mr. Bontreger asked if anyone would move to 
approve the process of funding for their project of $155,000 and that would be from the EDA 
money which is money that was derived from the Economic Development Agreement with the 
solar project in the North End that you all have to live around and this would be injecting some of 
that economic development money back into that community. Mr. Standish made a motion to 
approve $155,000, not to exceed, donation to Kankakee Township for the use of a storm shelter 
restroom at their county park. Mr. Hilton seconded, and the motion carried. 

TOWN OF REMINGTON JOHN CRIPE: Mr. Cripe presented a proposed amendment to the road 
use agreement. Mr. Cripe stated per the road use agreement IMI Concrete is not allowed to go 
south through the town to get to where they are dropping their concrete off. He stated going north 
puts a lot more traffic at the 24 and 2 intersections. He stated they are requesting to be allowed to 
use a quarter mile strip. Mr. Cripe stated this is a matter of public safety and is less invasive for 
the town. Mr. Standish stated that it does cross a bridge over Carpenter Creek, which is not a posted 
bridge and the concrete trucks do go over it daily already so they are not doing anything different 
on that bridge. Mr. Bontreger stated this is a request from the town of Remington for traffic control 
and safety purposes to run the concrete loads out the south end of town. 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

June 2, 2025 

PAGE51 

TOWN OF REMINGTON JOHN CRIPE CONT'D: Mr. Hilton stated seeing this is going to be 
the least invasive process he will make the motion. He stated when you look at the amount of 
properties going north versus south there is a significantly higher population going north out of 
there and he will make the motion to approve this. Mr. Standish seconded, and the motion carried. 

Mr. Cripe stated they will begin building an inclusive park in 2027. He stated they just created a 
parks master plan that is on file with the DNR. He stated with that on file they are allowed to 
apply for a Land and Water Conservation Fund grant. He stated he met with the DNR May 4th and 
presented their plan for the inclusive playground, rope structures, poured in place safe surfaces 
basically making it inclusive for kids with disabilities, kids with sensory issues, autism to easily 
maneuver around. He stated this would allow them to remove the existing playground which is 
very dated and was installed in the 1990's. He stated that park currently has pea gravel and is not 
conducive for anyone in a wheelchair or pushing a stroller. He stated DNR told them their plan 
and project were very strong. He stated they are trying to fundraise a million dollars for a match 
for the application. He stated any shortfalls that they do come up with the town has it covered but 
the project looks stronger showing community support. He stated they currently have $170,000 
in the Jasper Newton Foundation and they have financial commitment letters from various 
businesses, individuals, and organizations totaling $370,000. He stated they have $47,000 in in 
kind donations, and that would be like a landscaping company giving a discount on their services, 
concrete, construction company type of stuff. He stated they are requesting $250,000 from the 
EDA funds from the windmills. He stated they would not need anything until January of2027 and 
if the county is willing to do that, all they would need would be a financial commitment letter. Mr. 
Bontreger asked what the total project cost was. Mr. Cripe stated it is 2.4 million dollars. Mr. 
Bontreger stated then they are asking for roughly ten percent of that. Mr. Cripe stated this ties into 
a bigger plan that includes putting in a dog park and an outdoor amphitheater to bring their festival 
back. He stated they have developers ready to put in a subdivision in town and this is the type of 
stuff they want to see, they want to see that the downtown is progressing and the parks are strong. 
He stated he knows they have lost out on some projects due to the lack of workforce in the county 
and the park will help build more houses, get more people, more people in the schools, and 
restaurants, grocery stores, everything. Mr. Cripe stated it would be ideal to get a commitment 
letter in July so they could include it in their application that is due August first and they would 
not need any funds until January 2027. Mr. Standish asked if the 2.4 million estimate today had 
any inflationary factor in it. Mr. Cripe stated the DNR requires them to put a fifteen percent 
contingency into the estimate and that is included in the 2.4 million. Mr. Bontreger stated they will 
take it under advisement and then let him know what their possible commitment could be in the 
July meeting. Mr. Bontreger stated it would be a good idea for him to get on the Council agenda, 
it required collaboration between the Council and the Commissioners to arrive at these EDA funds 
with these projects so it's good to keep them informed in the process. Mr. Cripe stated this 
playground will be right next to the splash pad. 

Mr. Haberlin stated they replaced a bridge in the town that was not historical but it was a metal 
bridge that they purchased from IND OT. He stated instead of scrapping it for the value Remington 
asked for it and they donated it to Remington. He asked ifhe thinks they will do anything with it. 
Mr. Cripe stated they have a pedestrian trail expansion to the current parks. He stated the current 
park is 44 acres and they own 23 acres on the other side of the creek. He stated they are hoping to 
be able to put that across the creek to access the rest of their land so they can put more trails and 
disc golf, stuff like that in. 

ATTORNEY BEA VER: Mr. Beaver stated at the May meeting of the Board of Commissioners 
the Commissioners approved by oral resolution the 3rd amendment to the road use agreement with 
EDP Renewables. He stated they got through the final signatures and execution of those 
documents. He stated there has also been a bulk or blanket overweight permit for all their vehicles 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

June 2, 2025 

PAGE52 

ATTORNEY BEAVER CONT'D: that is a one-year duration that had been requested and issued. 
He stated he does not think he has anything pending now with EDP. 

Mr. Beaver stated the UDO ordinance that the Commissioners had approved last year required a 
good amount of drafting and that has been completed, was signed on Friday, and was recorded. 
He stated when that recorded copy is returned to the auditor's office then he will be able to scan 
and upload that to our Code Publishing company along with the two zoning ordinances that were 
also passed in the sununer of last year. He stated once they have that taken care of, the online 
county code will be current. Mr. Beaver stated something else has been recommended. He stated 
the Publishing Company is an internet company as opposed to the other legal publishers that came 
before that have been doing books for generations of county code books. He stated ordinarily in 
the print world you have the code reissued every year, and it has all the updates, and it is reprinted. 
Mr. Beaver stated they can do that but it is not printed it is just a pdf document of the entire code 
but it saves and memorializes what the code is at any give time so that if you are doing historical 
research, which is important in the zoning world especially when you have the code at hand that 
can tell you what the law was in 2016 or whatever and it can go right to it. He stated this is 
something that they had recommended be done last year in December. He stated he told them he 
had some work to do before they had a code ready. Mr. Beaver stated they have dealt the company 
since 2013 or 14 and they also do the city of Rensselear. He stated they were bought by a larger 
company and he has not had any actual dealings with them but would like to explore how things 
work. He stated they told him everything will be the same as it was before. He stated this is 
something he will be recommending to the Commissioners, a recompilation of the code which will 
be helpful for the members of the Plan Commission who like to have paper code, and it is helpful 
for them during meetings. He stated the printing of that is something that can be done quite easily 
even with his printer and done in color and bound. He stated this is how the code books were 
originally made. Mr. Beaver stated they don't charge any fee for the actual books which some of 
the other publisher do and he will have more updates for the Commissioners in the future on the 
code. 

Mr. Beaver stated he had a conversation with Justin Couture with Nipsco last Friday. He stated he 
talked with him for over an hour so that he could have a better idea of what a road use agreement 
with them would be for their gas peeker plant. He stated it was very helpful that Nipsco used as a 
templet, the road use agreement that they had with EDP. He stated they removed some sections 
that are inapplicable and he is comfortable with them. Mr. Beaver stated they are making plans to 
concrete stabilize portions of those roads in July and they have the MOU that was in place in 
February. He stated he thinks they are on track for them to continue. He stated he has no problems 
with them to continue with their plans. Mr. Beaver stated there is just the other issues of these 
other discussions with other people in Nipsco who are not named Justin Couture that they have 
not heard from and so he thinks that they will be hearing from them fairly soon because however 
these discussions play out they are material to what an ultimate written agreement with Nipsco 
will be. 

Mr. Beaver stated he had an update on the courthouse sidewalks. He stated he and Brandon Shreg 
had a number of conversations and he did get the notice advertised for bidders that should have 
been published in last weeks edition so bid openings can be scheduled for the sidewalks during the 
July meeting and awarded either at the August or July meeting. Mr. Bontreger stated the plans and 
the info sheets are at the auditor's office for contractors to be able to stop and look at. Mr. Bontreger 
stated he did get a copy of the INDOT permit with the signature page that he was able to sign and 
the mayor needs to sign his version and get it back as well. 

ED CAINE: Mr. Caine reported Town and Country started the CCMG projects. 

IT SAM TUCKER: Ms. Tucker stated she is representing Arcem Solutions that does the IT at the 
courthouse. She stated she has the plan to connect the new maintenance building to the internet. 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

June 2, 2025 

PAGE53 

IT SAM TUCKER CONT'D: She stated what they are going to do is to connect them to the EMS 
building. She stated this is the cheaper route. Ms. Tucker stated Kevin Moore is going to trench 
conduit and pull the fiber to the two buildings. She stated Arcem will provide materials and 
monitor it. She stated she has a quote for the Commissioners. Mr. Bontreger stated it seems like a 
no brainer, it is basically extending off of the EMS building and is the quickest route and least 
expensive. He stated Kevin will do the trenching and like they said they would do the hookup. Ms. 
Tucker stated EMS has a network and to connect maintenance they would install a small piece of 
equipment in that building and then that fiber conduit would connect them and then they would 
run off of their network. Mr. Bontreger stated it's a total of$3,626.28. Ms. Tucker stated that is 
for everything that is Kevin's work, their equipment, and their monitoring. Mr. Hilton made a 
motion to approve $3,626.38 to hookup the new maintenance office. Mr. Standish seconded, and 
the motion carried. 

OTHER BUSINESS: Mr. Bontreger stated they need to appropriate the balance of the money in 
the ARP A fund line for the utility expansion to the west. He stated they received an invoice from 
the city of Rensselaer and they can appropriate the rest of what is in that line to make a payment 
on it and then they will settle up using EDA or other funds. He stated they have until the first of 
next year, early next year, to get that settled. Bryce stated he had a meeting with the contractor in 
about thirty minutes so that they can start executing the documents. He stated they are getting 
closer on the easements. He stated they sent an invoice over to get that second deposit in so they 
can start covering the construction. He stated pending the easements they are targeting somewhere 
in August with the substantial completion in February. Ms. Boersma stated there is $2,623,821.32 
in that fund. Mr. Hilton made the motion to appropriate the remaining balance in that fund line. 
Mr. Standish seconded, and the motion carried. 

Mr. Bontreger stated that also fulfills a requirement that they needed the money not only to be 
allocated by this year but to be spent also. He stated they just recently went through an audit with 
the State Board of Accounts concerning this fund and it was relatively straightforward and simple 
and they got through that very easily. 

OTHER BUSINESS: Mr. Standish stated Ed Caine brought something to his attention via the 
district man in the area of Hanging Grove, and he had a chance last week to reach out to some of 
the homeowners that live in the vicinity to speak to them about it. He stated he is talking about the 
intersection at county road 320 East and 450 South, the old Hanging Grove School, clear north of 
the T. He stated there is only a stop sign from one direction so the other two directions can run 
through there at free will. He stated that was probably never an issue but sometime back in the last 
ten years 450 South got paved and it used to be gravel. He stated there are not a lot of people out 
there but there is a lot of semi traffic in those high peak agricultural times. He stated there are 
houses that sit right there that have teenage drivers. Mr. Standish stated he has spoken to the 
homeowners there and they are in favor of making that an all way stop. He stated he is asking Eric 
to put together an ordinance to make that a three-way/all way stop. Mr. Hilton stated that sounds 
legitimate and anywhere gravel is turned into asphalt it increases traffic speed. Mr. Bontreger asked 
Mr. Beaver to prepare an ordinance for this for them to have a public hearing next month. Mr. 
Standish stated they would probably need to add a stop ahead sign also. 

There were no public co=ents. 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

June 2, 2025 

PAGE54 

There being no further business, Mr. Hilton made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Standish 
seconded and the motion carried. 

ATTEST: <kL~ 
c ~~ ) 

Rein Bontreger, President 

Diana Boersma, Auditor of Jasper County 

~JL 
~ Hilton, Vice President 

{L,J1'u.d! 
Craig Standish, Member 


